“We Care for Our Residents by Working Together to Build a Better Community for Today and Tomorrow.”
City of Rohnert Park, 130 Avram Avenue, Rohnert Park, California 94928 (707) 588-2227 www.rpcity.org

Carrporniy,

CITY OF ROHNERT PARK
BICYCLE AND PEDESTRIAN ADVISORY COMMITTEE
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA
Monday, April 24, 2023, 5:30 p.m.
LOCATION: Rohnert Park City Council Chambers, Rohnert Park City Hall,
130 Avram Avenue, Rohnert Park, California

*COVID-19 NOTICE*

The City of Rohnert Park Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory Committee (BPAC) welcomes your attendance, interest and
participation at its regular meetings, scheduled on the fourth Monday of each month at 5:30 p.m., and its special
meetings, which are scheduled as needed. The use of a mask or facial covering when attending the BPAC meeting is
strongly recommended, regardless of vaccination status.

Public Comments during the Meeting: Members of the Public can provide public comment at the meeting. Comments
are limited to three minutes per appearance with a maximum allowance of 30 minutes allotted per comment period.
Members of the public may also provide advanced public comment by sending comments to the Management Analyst by email
at acotter@rpcity.org. Comments are requested by 3:00 p.m. on the day of the meeting.

American Disability Act Accommodations: Any member of the public who needs accommodations should email the ADA
Coordinator at jcannon@rpcity.org or by calling 707- 588- 2221. The ADA Coordinator will use their best efforts to provide
reasonable accommodations to provide as much accessibility as possible while also maintaining public safety in accordance with
the City procedure for resolving reasonable accommodation requests. Reasonable accommodations information is on the City
website at: https://www.rpcity.org/city _hall/departments/human_resources/a_d_a_and_accessibility_resources

Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory Committee agendas and minutes may be viewed on the City's website: www.rpcity.org.

MEETING ITEMS

1. Call ToOrder/Roll-Call

Gary Gutierrez (Chair) __Jan Ogren (vice chair) __ Shirley Johnson __ Steve Keith__ Tim Hensel

Introductions

Public Comments (on items not on the Agenda)

Consideration of Approval of Minutes for 3/27/2023 meeting

Safe Routes To School Involvement in Rohnert Park (Presentation by Christina Panza)
Trail to Crane Creek (update and discussion)

oW

New Matters for Future Consideration (Discussion)
Adjournment (Action)

®© N !

CERTIFICATION OF POSTING OF AGENDA:
I, Ashley Cotter, Management Analyst for the City of Rohnert Park, declare that the foregoing agenda for the April 24, 2023,
Regular Meeting of the Rohnert Park Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory Committee was posted and available for review on

Thursday, April 20, 2023, at Rohnert Park City Hall, Community and Senior Centers, Public Safety Main Building. The agenda is
also available on the City web site at www.rpcity.org.

Executed this 20th day of April, 2023, at Rohnert Park, California.
Ashley Cotter, Management Analyst


http://www.rpcity.org/
mailto:acotter@rpcity.org.
mailto:jcannon@rpcity.org
https://www.rpcity.org/city_hall/departments/human_resources/a_d_a_and_accessibility_resources
http://www.rpcity.org/

DRAFT

Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory Committee (BPAC)
Meeting Minutes

Carrpornih

5:30 PM, Monday, March, 27, 2023
Rohnert Park City Hall, City Council Chambers
130 Avram Avenue, Rohnert Park, California

Members Present:  Gary Gutierrez (chair) X Jan Ogren (vice chair) X Tim Hensel X
Steve Keith X Shirley Johnson X

Non-Voting Participants: Ashley Cotter (Management Analyst, City of Rohnert Park), Emily
Shartin (Sonoma County Bicycle Coalition).

1. Call to Order
Chair Tim Hensel called the meeting to order at 5:33 PM.

2. Introductions
Chair Gutierrez commenced self-introductions.

3. Public Comments

Ms. Shartin commented that Camino Collegio south of East Cotati bike lane is worn on the
south bound side, and that there is parking next to the bike lane that intrudes on the lane itself.
Ms. Cotter pulled up Google Maps for the section Ms. Shartin was mentioning so all BPAC
members could see and comment. Mr. Gutierrez asked if there was supposed to be parking next
to the bike lane — Mx. Ogren responded that this is also the case on Golf Course Drive. Ms.
Shartin also stated that curb is not painted red (if it needed to be). She commented that there is a
lot of work being done in that area near SOMO Village, and asked this area would be worked on
more. Mx Ogren remarked that this is a good topic to bring up for discussion. Ms. Johnson
remarked that the section of road could benefit from a road diet, as there didn’t seem to be a
need for two lanes at that section. Mr. Gutierrez mentioned that if someone were to open the
door of their car as they were parked next to a bike lane, and someone riding their bike comes
along, it wouldn’t be good.

4. Consideration of Approval of Minutes for 2/27/2023 meeting

Mx. Ogren commented that she had a correction to the minutes, to reflect that Mx. Ogren
commented that the Hinebaugh Creek path from country club to the golf course is not used as
much since it dead ends at the golf course - while the path from Five Creek to Snyder is in bad
shape and would be used more especially when the K section to Snyder is improved.

Ms. Johnson moved to approve the minutes with corrections, Mx. Ogren seconded. Minutes
from 2/27/23 minutes approved: 5 ayes, 0 abstentions

S. Bike Path Audit

Ms. Cotter prepared a PowerPoint presentation on the bike path audits performed by BPAC
members between the end of October and mid-November last year (2022). The presentation
reviewed all of the audits conducted and the resulting findings. Some of the findings included:



Rohnert Park Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory Committee DRAFT
March 27, 2023 Meeting Minutes

e highest use section was section 10: Five Creek Path from Across from Eagle Park to
Confluence with Hinebaugh Creek,

e the average number of boke path users per audit was approximately 14,

e most observations found that the creek paths were either somewhat distressed or very
distressed,

e Some sections were observed more than once (section 10 was observed 5 times over the
audit period), most reported sections were audited once

e Auditors noted the most groups on the bike path between 12-2:30pm

e 9 of the audited sections observed no usage of bicycles/scooters/strollers/wheelchairs,
and 12 of the audited sections observed some usage

e Of 26 Sections, 5 sections were not observed

Mx. Ogren commented that she had asked people she saw on the bike paths if they regularly used the
paths, several responded that there were path sections they actively avoided due to path conditions.
Mr. Gutierrez commented that the Five Creek path looked like a high priority area. Mx. Ogren asked
if this audit interfered with the City’s Capital Improvement Program — Ms. Cotter responded that it
did not, but that these findings are very helpful for determining future projects. Mr. Hensel
commented that the time allocated for auditors to complete their audits was very limited, and had
wished it was longer. Mr. Hensel further commented that usage for the current time period (late
October — mid November), had the audit period been longer, results could have provided a better
spectrum of users, and that this audit period also captured the change in daylight savings. Mr. Hensel
pointed out that had the audit period taken place in July, auditors wouldn’t have been able to keep
track of the number of kids on Copeland Creek path, for example. Mr. Keith commented that
observing traffic on a Friday night market night in the summer would also yield different results. Mr.
Keith observed that the audits could be more beneficial if the audits were more consistent across
periods of time, as the audit discussed didn’t capture items such as school getting out for summer or
starting in early fall, Friday night markets, all of which don’t happen in late fall. Mr. Keith felt that a
quarterly audit would be better for consistent data. Mx. Ogren commented that usage overall was
down from what tey usually observe, which was probably attributed to the time of the year that the
audit was conducted during. Mx. Ogren also asked about feedback on the audit sheets provided. Ms.
Cotter responded that this was a great first go with the audits, and that it yielded some good feedback
for the City — moving forward, we should work together to further define the parameters, and that
numerical data is the best kind from a data visualization point of view. Mr. Gutierrez recommended
that the BPAC agendize this item to move forward on. Mr. Hensel also commented that during his
audits he encountered homeless encampment in the creek area near a school that had been there for a
few days, so he called public safety. He noted that public safety was very quick to respond, and
ushered the people to a different location.

6. List of items for discussion

Ms. Cotter presented a list of items that had previously been discussed at the January BPAC meeting.
Mx. Ogren provided some updates per the discussion in January, such as prioritizing certain topics,
and noting which topics had been covered sufficiently. Additions to this list included a field trip to
the trail to Crane Canyon, moving forward with future bike path audits. Items removed due to
sufficient coverage include Bus stop amenities and the intersection of Rohnert Park Expressway and



Rohnert Park Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory Committee DRAFT
March 27, 2023 Meeting Minutes

Commerce — pedestrian timing. Mr. Gutierrez suggested that, since having Public Safety visit was a
high priority item, to think of questions and send them to Ms. Cotter prior to coordinating the visit.

7. New Matters for Future Consideration

Mr. Keith noted that recently there’s been a big shift in students at Evergreen Elementary being
driven to school instead of walking which has had an impact on parking along Emily Ave. Ms.
Shartin commented that there are programs with the Sonoma County Bike Coalition, such as Safe
Routes to School, which is still an active program that aims to work in tandem with the schools and
cities. Ms. Shartin posed a question to the group — what level of involvement would they want from
an organization like Safe Routes to School? Mr. Keith questioned who made changes to policy
regarding this — the school or the city? Ms. Shartin further questioned what the actual change in
question was. Mr. Keith responded that there has been an increase in signage at Evergreen
Elementary as an attempt to manage traffic, such as no double parking, etc., signs that it’s good to
drive your kids to school. Mr. Keith commented that his perception of it was a clear movement to
support parents driving to school. Mr. Keith further commented about whether or not that’s a good
position to be in — coaxing people away from letting their students walk to school, even though
Evergreen Elementary is close to a lot of trails. Mr. Gutierrez suggested it could have been the
school, and also suggested BPAC members agendize this matter for future discussion. Mx. Ogren
commented that connecting with the bike coalition would be beneficial, and wondered if efforts
could be supported through the City. Mx. Ogren also commented that Golf Course Dr., is also very
crowded when school lets out. Ms. Shartin commented that she had a colleague who might be able to
give an overview of Safe Routes to School, if that discussion would be helpful. BPAC members
agreed it would be an interesting matter for future consideration.

8. Adjournment

Mr. Gutierrez moved to adjourn the meeting, Mr. Hensel seconded. Meeting adjourned at 6:43pm.

Ashley Cotter, Recording Secretary Gary Gutierrez, Chair
Rohnert Park Bicycle and Rohnert Park Bicycle and
Pedestrian Advisory Committee Pedestrian Advisory Committee



Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory Committee

Memorandum
Carirornib
FROM: Ashley Cotter, Management Analyst
MEETING DATE: April 24, 2023
AGENDA ITEM: #6
SUBJECT: Copeland Creek Trail to Crane Creek Project Update and Prospective

Timeline

ISSUE:

At the March 27, 2023 meeting, the Rohnert Park Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory Committee
(BPAC) requested an update on the Copeland Creek Trail to Crane Creek Project. One of the
project engineers provided the following update:

Update:

This program requires interagency coordination, which is still ongoing. However, the project is still
on track with an estimated completion of June, 2024.

Estimated Timeline:
City puts project out to be publicly bid: Summer (June-August, 2023)
City to commence construction: September, 2023

Estimated time to complete construction: 6-9 months depending on future weather and contractor
efficiency

Estimated completion: June, 2024
Notes:

It is important to note that this update is currently an estimated schedule, which could change at any
point in time.

Staff Recommendation for future agenda items:
At the March 27, 2023, it was suggested that a future agenda item could be a trip out to the newly

formed trail from Copeland Creek Trail to the Crane Creek Park. Staff recommends this as a
possible agenda item in Summer or Fall of 2024.



